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Memorandum 
September 12, 2019 
 
TO: Planning and Zoning Commission 
 Julie Couch, Town Manager 
  
FROM: Israel Roberts, AICP 
 Planning Manager 
  
SUBJECT: REZONING OF FORMER FAIRVIEW COUNTRY DAY SCHOOL (CASE 

#ZA2019-05) 
  
 
BACKGROUND:  This is a request for approval of a change in zoning for an 8.2-acre site, 
formerly the Fairview Country Day School, from the (PC) Planned Center District to the (RE-
1.5) One-and-one Half acre Ranch Estate District. The site is located at 885 Hart Road, on the 
north side of Hart Road, east of Stoddard Road.  Applicant/Owner: Michael Pezzulli (ZA2019-
05). 
 
STATUS OF ISSUE:  The applicant proposes to rezone the land from the (PC) Planned Center 
district, which established the development plans for the former Fairview Country Day school, to 
the (RE-1.5) One-and-One-Half acre Ranch Estate District.  The subject rezoning request does not 
provide a concept plan the site, simply seeks to rezoning the site for future residential uses.  There 
is no development associated with this request.  
 
CONPREHENSIVE PLAN:  According to the Comprehensive Plan and the Future Land Use Map, 
the site is designated for Institutional uses.  By definition, the Institutional Uses (Schools, Town 
Facilities) would provide support for administrative offices and community service facilities for 
Town of Fairview, Collin County, the State of Texas, or Federal government; administrative 
offices, educational facilities, and service centers for Lovejoy ISD or McKinney ISD, and religious 
properties.  In this case, since the site would no longer be used for educational purposes, a revision 
in the Future Land Use map would be necessary, to complement the request change in zoning to 
residential uses     
 
As shown the matrix below, the property to the north (same ownership) and east of this site are 
designated for Residential Estate Transition uses on the Future Land Use Map.  According to the 
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Comprehensive Plan, the Residential Estate Transition recommends a gross density of 1 dwelling 
unit for each 1.5-acre of land.  In this case, the requested (RE-1.5) Residential District would 
complement the Residential Estate Transition recommendations.  
 
HISTORY:  The main structure for the school was constructed in 2003, before the site was within 
Town limits.  The site was annexed in 2006.  Zoning for the school operation was approved by 
council in 2007.  Included with that zoning approval was a development plan that reflected the 
ultimate build-out for the Fairview Country Day School over three (3) phases.  Over the three 
phases, the approved plan included multiple classroom and support buildings as well as an 
auditorium.  According to the plan adopted in 2007, the projected traffic count associated with 
Phase 3, which included a 10,000-15,000 SF classroom building and the auditorium, was 
approximately 280 trips per day.   Should the requested zoning change be approved, based on the 
(RE-1.5) Residential Estate District area requirements, there could be at most 5 homes the on 8.2-
acre site.  Using standard trip generation formulas for the potential 5 homes, the estimated traffic 
generated by those 5 homes would be approximately 50 trips per day.  Therefore, the requested 
zoning represents a reduction in the estimated number of trips per day for the site.  
 
LAND USE: The land use and zoning of the surrounding properties are as follows: 
 

 Current Zoning Current Land Use Future Land Use Plan 

North (RE-1) One-acre 
Ranch Estate Residential Residential Estate 

Transition 

East (RE-3) Three-acre 
Ranch Estate Vacant Residential Estate 

Transition 

South (RE-1) One-acre 
Ranch Estate Residential Residential Estate 

West (RE-3) Three-acre 
Ranch Estate 

School/Educational  
(Puster Elementary) Institutional Uses 

 
 
PUBLIC INPUT:  The town has notified 21 adjacent property owners within 500 feet of the subject 
property and Lovejoy ISD in accordance with Town requirements and to date, have no 
correspondence.   
 
RECOMMENDATION: Since the proposed rezoning conforms with the recommendations of the 
adopted Comprehensive Plan, staff recommends APPROVAL of the subject rezoning request and 
that the Future Land Use Map be revised to reflect Residential Estate Transition uses for the subject 
site.  
 
BUDGET: N/A 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

• Locator 
• Proposed Tract Map 
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